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We have audited the accompanytng consolidated financial statements of International Bank of
Yemen (Y.S.C.), and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group") which comprise the

consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements (1-42),

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section ofour report, the accompanylng consolidated financial statementspresent fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020, and
its consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporung Standards ("IFRS"), instructions of Central Bank ofYemen and
the prevailing Yemeni Laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The other provisions item, which are carried in the group'sconsolidated financial statements at YR
103,483,914 thousand as on December 31, 2020 (2019: YR 75,681,448 thousand), includes a

provision provided in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank ofYemen against losses
related to the exposure of foreign currencies positions of YR 91,680,497 thousand (2019: YR
62,204, 166 thousand). The aforementioned provision does not meet the definition of a provision

and therefore its recognition constitutes a departure from International Financial Reporting
Standards. As a result, the retained earnings were understated by YR 91,680,497 thousand (2019:

YR 62,204,166 thousand), other provisions were overstated by an amount of YR 91,680,497
thousand (2019: YR 62,204,166 thousand), and the profit for the year were understated by the
provision provided for the year to meet the exposure of foreign currencies position amounting of
YR 29,476,331 thousand (2019: YR 14,857,556 thousand).

We conducted our audit in accordance with international standards for auditing and the
requirements of the relevant Yemeni laws and regulations. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidatedfmancial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Intemationa/ Code of Ethics for Pmfessional
Accountants (IESBA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Chartered Accountants & Consultants
License No. 742
Member of Grant Thornton International
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To: The Shareholders' of

International Bank ofYemen Group (Y.S.C.)
Sana'a - Republic ofYemen

Emphasis ofMatters

We draw attention to:

1.

2.

3.

4.

Note No. (12) of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the events that led to

the emergence ofmaterial indicators that Ocean Breeze for Investment and Development Co.

Ltd. (the "subsidiary Company") may not be able to continue as the subsidiary company has

not been able until the date of this report to obtain either land ownership or the usufruct
contract on which the operation was supposed to be based, for the land provided by the
General Authority for Land, Survey and Urban Planning in Aden city. These events and their
impact on the auditor's report, in which he disclaimed from expressing an opinion on the
financial statements of the subsidiary company for the financial year ending on December 31,

2020, and its effect on the group's management decision to recognlze a loss Of 100% Of the
value of usufruct amount (intangible asset).

Note No. (3.33) of the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, regarding
the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate risks and their impact on significant foreign

currency positions.
Note No. (38) of the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, regarding
the political crisis, the economic situation and the security events taking place in the Republic

of Yemen, as this indicates the existence of a state of uncertainty about the possibility of
improving the political and economic conditions, and this constitutes a challenge to the group's
management ability to predict future cash flow patterns and their outcomes.
Note No. (40) of the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that pursuant to the signed agreement on March 18, 2021 between Bank of Beirut -

Lebanon and the International Bank ofYemen - Yemen, the Group's management purchased
bonds (Eurobonds) via the Government ofLebanon against the bank's financial balances with
Bank ofBeirut as current accounts and deposits.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters above.

Other Matter

We would like to refer to the Central Bank ofYemen Circular No. (5257) issued on December 23,

2019 regarding the application of the International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9) "Financial
Instmments", in which it is decided to postpone the application of the IFRS No. (9) so that the
standard will be applied starting from January I, 2021. On April 13, 2022, the Central Bank of
Yemen issued a Circular No. (15) which extends the postpone of the application of IFRS No. (9) until

issuing the regulated instructions to apply the standard during the year 2022. Moreover, the necessary
procedures that ensure proper implementationof the standard should take place starting from the year 2022.

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, instructions of CBY
and the prevailing Yemeni Laws and regulations, and for such internal control as management
determines which is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Chartered ACØuntants& Consultants
License NO. 742
Member of Grant Thomton International
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To: The Shareholders' of

International Bank ofYemen Group (Y.S.C.)
Sana'a - Republic ofYemen

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessmg the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to gotng
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole is free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressingan
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounung policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertatnty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to contlnue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board ofDirectors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

Internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Accountants & Consultants
License NO. 742
Member of Grant Thornton International
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To: The Shareholders' of

International Bank ofYemen Group (Y.S.C.)
Sana'a - Republic ofYemen

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Except for the matters described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph, we obtained from the
management the information and clarifications that we deemed necessary for auditing purposes,
and the Group maintains regular accounts records, and the accompanytng consolidated financial
statements are in agreementwith what is contamed in those records. Furthermore, we are not aware
of any violations of Yemen Commercial Companies Law No. (22) for 1997 and its amendments, or
Banking Law NO. (38) of 1998 occurred during the year in which might have a material impact to

the Group's business or its consolidated financial position, except for the following:

I.

2.

The bank management's violation ofCircular No. (6) of 1998 issued by Central Bank ofYemen
regarding non-compliance with the ceilings set by the Central Bank of Yemen for foreign
exchange positions as of December 31, 2020, as stated in Note No. (3.33) of the accompanytng
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
As stated in Note No. (19) to the consolidated financial statements, related to the completion
of the procedures for amending the articles of association and commercial registeration
refelcting the capital increase that incurred during the year ended December 31, 2016.

ra prnton Yemen

A1-Ariqi
rhornto

Sana'a - Republic ofYemen
May 25, 2022

Chartered Accountants & Consultants
License No. 742
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International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of financial position

Assets
Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Customers loans and advances
Available for sale financing investments
Debit balances and other assets
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Right to use leased assets
Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers' deposits

Credit balances and other liabilities
Other_provisions
Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Statutory reserve
Foreign currencies revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to of the bank

Notes

6
7

8

9
10
11

13
14

15
16
17
18

19
20

21

Dec. 31, 2020
YR'OOO

43,530,226
96,083,277

540,847,447
14,059,375

120,000
684,637

2,144,995
567,353

698,037,310

58,377,127

21

103,483,914
636,202,045

17,885,179
(9,179)

27,552,298
61

93,033
61

25,586,143

Dec. 31, 2019
YR'OOO

48,610,099
126,216,603
504,711 ,273
19,245,194

120,000
592,244

2,317,657
682,878

702,495,948

58,419,286
496,095,603
19,812,361
75,681 ,448

16,500,000
15,348,121

(9,179)
20,741 ,009
52,579,951

92,701)
52,487,250

702,495,948

12,007,660

Non-controllin interests
Total equi
Total liabilities and equi

Continqent liabilities and commitments

First Deputy General Manager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

General Manager

Mr. Omar Rashed Abdulhak

Chairman

Mr. Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

See accompanying notes (1-42) to the consolidated financial statements



International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31,

Interest income
Interest income from held to maturity investments
Total interest income

Interest
Net interest income

Fee and income from banking services
Fee and commission expenses from banking services
Gain from foreign currencies transactions

Income from available for sale financing investments
Other incomes
Net operating income

Less: Impairment loss on financial assets (provision)
Less: Impairment of financial investments available for sale
Less: Depreciation of property and equipment and right to use leased assets
Less: Staff costs
Less: Other expenses
Profit for the year before tax

Income tax for
Net profit for the year after tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the bank
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (YR)

First Deputy General anager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

Notes

22

23

24

25

26

27

14.13
28
29

17.1

30

2020
YR'OOO

7,388,753
87,539,534
94,928,287

(33,464,518)
61,463,769

2,839,159
(310,671)

22,741,026

3,028,629
89,761 ,912

(49,752,980)
(198)

(904,182)
(3,081 ,787)
(11,286,723)

(7,822,657)

16,913,385

16,913,385

16,913,717
(332)

16,913,385

102.51

2019
YR'OOO

7,396,083
78,406,330
85,802,413

(33,776,273)

2,111 ,636
(350,761)
5,528,358

12,000
1,015,458
60,342,831

(26,301 ,442)

(331 , 175)

(9,501 ,668)
22,214,976

(6,513,317)

15,701,659

15,701,659

15, 701 ,995
(336)

15,701,659

95.16

General Manager

Mr. Omar Rashed Abdulhak

Chairman

Mr. Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

3

See accompanying notes (1-42) to the consolidated financial statements 2



International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended December 31,

Paid-up
Capital
YR'OOO

16,500,000Balance at January I, 2020
Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Changes in equity holders, recorded directly in equity
Transferred to reserves
Distributions of profits

Balances at December 31, 2020

First Deputy General Manager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

Statutory
Reserve
YR'OOO

15,348,121

15 348 121

2,537,058

17,885,179

Foreign
Currencies
Revaluation

Reserve
YR'000

(9,179)

(9,179)

(9,179)

2030

Retained
Earnings
YR'OOO

20,741,009
16,913,717

37,654,726

(2,537,058)
7,565,370)
27,552,298

2

Total Equity
Attributable

to Equity
•Holders

of ihe Bank
YR'OOO

52,579,951
16,913,717

69,493,668

61,928,298

Nory
Controlling
Interests
YR'OOO

(92,701)
(332)

(93,033

(93,033)

totål
VR'OOO

52,487,250
16,913,385

61,835,265

General Manager

Mr. Omar Rashed Abdulhak

See accompanying notes (1-42) to the consolidated financial statements

Chairman

Mr. Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

3



International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (Continued)
For the year ended December 31,

Balance at January 1, 2019
Adjustments to retained earnings for the prior year
Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Changes in equity holders, recorded directly in equity
Transferred to reserves
Distributions of profits
Balances at December 31, 2019

First Deputy General Manager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

Paid-up
- Capital
YR'OOO

16,500,000

Statutory
Reserve
YR'OOO

12,992,822

2,355,299

15,348,121

Foreign
Currencies
Revaluation

Reserve
YR'OOO

(9,179)

(9,179)

(9,179)

2019

Retained
Earnings
YR'OOO

15,478,148
(84,077)

15,701,995

31,096 066

(2,355,299)

Total Equity
Attributable

to Equity
Holders

•of the Bank
YR'OOO

44,961,791
(84,077)

15,701 ,995

60,579 709

(7,999,758
52,579,951

Non,
Controlling

Interests
YR'OOO

(92,365)

(336)

(92701)

(92,701)

Total
YR'OOO

44,869,426
(84,077)

15,701 ,659

7,999,758)
52,487 ,250

General Manager

Mr. Omar Rashed Abdulhak

Chairman

Mr. Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

See accompanying notes (1-42) to the consolidated financial statements 4



International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31,

Cash flows from operatinq activities
Net profit for the year before tax

Adiustmentsfor profit:

Zakat recngnized on statement of comprehensive income

Notes

Depreciation of property and equipment and right to use leased assets
Provisions provided during the year
Impairment of available for sale financing investments during the year
Provisions used during the year
Differences of revaluation of provisions in foreign currencies
Impairment provisions reversed
Adjustments on provision of loans and advances
Adjustments on accumulated depreciation of property and equipment
Debit interest on lease contracts liabilities 17.3

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities available
from operating activities

Changes in:

Reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen
Customers loans and advances
Debit balances and other assets
Balances due to banks
Customers' deposits
Credit balances and other liabilities
Paid income tax
Paid zakat
Net cash available from operating activities

Cash flows from investinq activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Changes in deposits with banks reserved as guarantee
Change in available for sale
Net cash (used in) available from investing activities

Cash flows from financinq activities
Paid Dividends
Adjustments to retained earnings
Payments to creditors of the right to use leased assets
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ear

17.1

17.2

13

17.3

2020
YR'OOO

24,736,042

4,723,860
904,182

49,752,980
198

(721 ,601)
98,891

(2,225,322)

(3,472)
38,365

77,304,123

2,437,756
(2,215,138)

132,929
(42,159)

(43,387,863)
(505,703)

(7,061 ,674)
(3,055,482)

23,606,789

(589,081)
(1,141,227)

(198)
(1,730,506)

(7,565,370)

(164,562)
(7,729,932)

14,146,351
643,002,532
657,148,883

2019
YR'OOO

22,214,976

2,827,686
331,175

26,301 ,442

(230,758)
(14,979)
(822,709)
(203,201)
(80,400)
44,837

50,368,069

(407 , 392)
14,672,208

709,340
18,342,844
7,054,337
923,595

(2,623,123)

87,677,446

(552,861 )

491 ,293

(7,999,758)
(84,077)
(155,825)

(8,239,660)

79,929,079
563,073,453

First Deputy General Manager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

General Manager Chairman

Mr. Omar Rashed Abdulhak Mr Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

See accompanying notes (I -42) to the consolidated financial statements' E'
3 5



International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended December 31,

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of:

Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments

Less: Deposits with banks reserved as guarantee
Less: Mandatory reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen

Notes 2020
YR'OOO

114,728,018
540,847,447
699,105,691

(5,142,263)
(36,814,545)
657,148,883

2019
YR'OOO

132,934,497
504,711 ,273

686,255,869

(4,001 ,036)

643,002,532

First Deputy General Manager

Mr. Abdukader Ali Bazara

General Manager

r. Omar Rashed Abdulhak

Chairman

Mr. Kamal Hussein A1-Jabri

See accompanying notes (1-42) to the consolidated financial statements 6



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

1. General overview

International Bank ofYemen ("the Bank") was established as a Yemeni Shareholding Company (Y.S.C.) in
the Republic of Yemen on January 14, 1979 under Presidential Decree No. (4) of 1979, the Bank carries its

banking activities according to the provisions of the law of commercial banks (38) of 1998 and its by laws. The
Bank engaged in activities through the head office in the city of Sana'a and 26 branches in the cities of Sana'a,

Aden, Taiz, Mukalla, Seiyuon, Dhamar, Hodeidah, Marib, A1-Qttn, Ibb and Tareem.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and the financial statements
of the subsidiary in Yemen (together referred to as the "Group") as follows:

Name of the
Subsidiary

Ocean Breeze
for Investment

Country of
Incorporation

The Company's
W Capital

Main ActivityQ ' Thousand USD
v Year Incorporation

Establishment of
investments projects
in the fields of
tourism, construction
and overall trade

Ownership
Percentage
2020

80%

2019

Republic of Yemen
& Development
Ltd. co.

2.

2.1

Adoption of new and revised international financial reporting standards
("IFRS")

New and standards that are effective for annual periods beginnino on or after January I,

2020

The standards and amendments that are effective for the first time in 2020 (for entities with a December 31, 2020

year-end) are:

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework (Various Standards).

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3).

Definition ofMaterial (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8).
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, and IFRS 7).

These amendments have no material impact on the Group consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the

Group Management did not make any changes to its accounting policies in 2020. Below is information on these

new standards/amendments:

7
International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31 , 2020

1. Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework (Various Standards)

In March 2018, the IASB published a revised 'Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Conceptual

Framework), concluding its long-running project in this area. Although it is not a Standard and will not
Immediately change or override any existing Standards, it may affect entities that develop or select accounting
policies according to the previous version of the Conceptual Framework issued in 2010.

The Conceptual Framework describes the objective of, and the concepts for, general purpose financial reporting.
It is mainly a tool for the IASB to develop and revise standards that are based on consistent concepts. Still,
entities might also use it when they have to develop accounting policies when no Standard applies or when a

Standard allows a choice of accounting policy.

The main issues addressed by the revised Conceptual Framework:

The revised Conceptual Framework now sets out a complete set of concepts in eight chapters:

I.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.

7.
8.

The objective ofgeneral-purpose financial reporting.
The qualitative characteristics of useful financial information.
Financial statements and the reporting entity.
The elements of financial statements.
Recognition and derecognition.
Measurement.
Presentation and disclosure.
Concepts of capital and capital maintenance.

Alongside the revised Conceptual Framework, the IASB has published 'Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards'. This publication updates nearly all of the references to previous

versions with references to the 2018 Conceptual Framework.

The IASB is confident that the updated references will have no impact on preparers of financial statements and

reminds them that the Conceptual Framework is not a Standard and does not change or override requirements

ofany existing Standards. It is primarily a tool for the IASB to help them develop Standards based on consistent

concepts. However, some references have not been updated or allow preparers to continue applytng the 2010
Conceptual Framework.

To avoid unintended consequences, preparers are required to apply the definitions of assets and liabilities from

the 2010 Conceptual Framework when accounting for business combinations under IFRS 3. The IASB plans to

explore in due course how those references can be updated without having any effects on preparers of financial

statements. Also, preparers will continue using the 2010 definitions of assets and liabilities when accounting for

regulatory account balances, which means preparers will not have to change their accounting for rate-regulated

assets and liabilities twice within a short period as the IASB is planning to replace the interim Standard IFRS 14

'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' in the near future.

Over the last few years, the IASB has already started applying some of the new or revised concepts when

developing or amending Standards.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group.

8
International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31 , 2020

2. Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

In October 2018, the IASB issued 'Definition of a Business' making amendments to IFRS (3) 'Bustness
Combinations. The amendments are a response to feedback received from the post-implementation review of
IFRS 3. They clarify a business's definition to help entities determine whether a transaction should be accounted

for as an asset acquisiuon or a business combination. The amendments are as follow:

Clarify the minimum attributes that the acquired assets and activities must have to be considered a bustness.
Remove the assessment ofwhether market participants can acquire the business and replace missing inputs
or processes to enable them to continue to produce outputs.
Narrow the definition of a business and the definition of outputs.
Add an optional concentration test that allows a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

The amendments replace the wording in the definition of a business from:

'Providing a return in the form of dividends, lower costs or other economic benefits directly to investors
or other owners, members or participants' to

'Providing goods or services to customers, generating Investment income (such as dividends or interest) or
generating other Income from ordinary activities.'

This narrows the definition by focusing on goods or services rather than returns.

These amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements but may impact future periods should

the Group enter into any business combinations.

3. Definition ofMaterial (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

In October 2018, the IASB issued 'Definition of Material,' making amendments to IAS I 'Presentation of
Financial Statements and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.'

The amendments respond to findings that some companies experienced difficulties using the previous definition

when judging whether the information was material for inclusion in the financial statements. In fact, up to now,
the wording of the definition ofmaterial in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting differed from
the wording used in IAS I and IAS 8. In addition, the existence of more than one definition of material was
potentially confusing, leading to questions over whether the definitions had different meanings or should be

applied differently.

The amendments note that many existlng and potential Investors, lenders, and other creditors cannot require

reporting entities to provide information directly to them and must rely on general-purpose financial statements
for much of the financial information they need.

Consequently, they are the primary users to whom general-purpose financial statements are directed.

The amendments are designed to rectify this problem and make it easier for companies to define materiality
judgments.

9
International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31 , 2020

They do this by:

• including in the definition guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS.
• improving the explanations that accompany the definition.

ensuring that the definition ofmaterial is consistent across all IFRS.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact
to the Group.

4. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, and IFRS 7)

In October 2019, the IASB published Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, and

IFRS 7) in response to the ongoing reform of interest rate benchmarks worldwide. The amendments aim to

provide relief for hedging relationships.

Many interbank offered rates (IBORs) will be replaced by new benchmark Risk-Free Rates (RFRs) in the next
few years.

One of the biggest issues presented by the replacement of IBORs is the potential effect on hedge accounting

given the extensive use of Interest rate benchmarks in global financial markets, and it's this subject that is
addressed by the IASB's amendments. The main amendments can be summarised as follows:

a. Highly probable requirement and prospective assessments of hedge effectiveness

an entity currently designates IBOR cash flows, the replacement of IBORs with new interest rate

benchmarks raises questions over whether it will be possible to make the assertion that those cash flows will still
occur In a hedge of highly probable future cash flows and whether the hedging relationship meets the
requirements to be viewed as effective on a prospective basis.

The IASB therefore has provided exceptions for determrning whether a forecast transaction is highly probable

or whether it's no longer expected to occur. Specifically, the amendments state that an entity should apply those
requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows are based is not altered

as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

They also include exceptions to the hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 and IAS 39 so that an entity
assumes that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows are based and/or the interest rate

benchmark on which the cash flows of the hedging instrument are based are not altered as a result of interest

rate benchmark reform when the entity determines whether:

there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument applying IFRS 9.

• or the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsettingby applying IAS 39.

b. Designating a component of an item as the hedged item

The changes amend the hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 and IAS 39 for hedges of the benchmark

component of interest rate risk that is not contractually specified and affected by interest rate benchmark reform,
Specifically, they state that an entity applies the requirement (that the designated risk component or designated
portion is separately identifiable) only at the inception of the hedging relationship. However, there is one
exception to this. When an entity frequently resets a hedging relationship because both the hedging instruments
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and the hedged item often change, the entity applies the requirement only when it initially designates a hedged
item in it that hedging relationship.

The amendments affect entities with hedgrng relationships directly affected by IBORs.

In accordance to the instructions of the Central Bank of Yemen circular No. (5257) ) issued on December 23, 2019
regarding the application of the International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9) "Financial Instruments", in
which it is decided to postpone the application of the IFRS No. (9) so that the standard will be applied starting
from January 1, 2021. On April 13, 2022 the Central Bank ofYemen issued Circular No. (15) which extends the

postpone of the application of IFRS No. (9) "Financial Instruments" until issuing the regulated instructions to

applying the standard during the year 2022. Moreover, that the necessary procedures that ensure implementation
of the standard have to be taken place starting from the year 2022.

2.2 Standards, amendments,and interpretations to existino standards that are not set effective and
have not been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, specific new standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published by the IASB that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the

Group as follows:

Standard
IFRS 3

IAS 16

IAS 37

IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS
16, and IAS 41

IFRS 17

IFRS 4

IAS 1

Title of Standard or Interpretation

to the Conceptual FrameworkReferences
Amendments to IFRS 3

Proceeds before intended use Amendments to IAS 16

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IAS 3

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IAS
41

Insurance Contracts

Extension of theTemporary Exemption fromApplying
IFRS 9 Amendments to IFRS 4

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IAS 1

Effective for
Accounting Periods
Beginning on or after

January 01, 2022

anu 01, 2022
January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

anu 01, 2023
January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

Group's management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's accounting

policies for the first period beginnmg after the pronouncement's effective date. New standards, interpretations,
and amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

3.

3.1

3.1.1

The significant accounting policies adopted

Policies applicable on or after January 1, 2019

Right to use leased assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying

asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasureof lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certam to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject
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to Impairment starune from January 1, 2019, the nght of use assets amounted to YR 567,353 thousand as of

December 31, 2020 (2019: YR 682,878 thousand).

3.1.2 Lease contracts liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of

lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-

substance fLxed payments) less any lease Incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index

or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease

payments that do not depend on an Index or a rate are recognlzed as expense in the period on which the event

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the internal cost of funds as incremental

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date (20% for YR leases, 4% for foreign currency leases) after the

commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is Increased to reflect the accretion of interest and is reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the

assessment to purchase the underlying asset. Lease liabilities are Included within credit balances and other

liabilities, and these liabilities amounted of YR 600,020 thousand as ofDecember 31, 2020 (2019: YR 702,775
thousand).

3.1.3 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that

have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases

of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.1.4 Sionificant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered

by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option

to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of one to five years.
The Group applies judgement in evaluatingwhether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the

commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew
(a change in business strategy).

Statement of compliance3.2

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on golng concern basis and in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the amendments of Central Bank of Yemen in respect
of recognition, measurement, disclosure of financial instruments, according to the circular of the Central Bank
of Yemen, addressed to all banks operating in the Republic of Yemen, which states that "defer the

implementation of IFRS (9)" Financial Instruments" to the beginntng of the year 2022 ", and the requirements

of the relevant Yemeni laws and regulations.

Therefore, it is required to comply with circular No. (6) of 1996 and circular No. (5) of 1998 and circular No.
(8) of 2015, in respect of assets and liabilities classification. Furthermore, a provision should be made for direct

facilities at amortized cost and contln ent liabllities itself, in addition to a provision for general risks calculated
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on the total of loans and advances and other liabilities after deducting any balance secured by deposits and bank
guarantees issued by foreign worthy banks. The provision is determined based on periodic comprehensive
reviews of the credit portfolio and contingent liabilities, and percentages identified in theCentral Bank ofYemen
instructions. Therefore, general risk provisions calculated on performing loans and advances and contingent
liabilities provision are to be recognized in other provisions, rather than in equity.

3.3 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accountmg policies below. The historical cost
basis is based on the fair value paid for those assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless ofwhether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for

measurement and\or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a

basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS (2), leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS (17), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realizable value in IAS (2) or value in use in IAS (36).

In addition, for financial reportingpurposes, fair valuemeasurements are categorized into Level I, 2 or 3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

• Level I: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

• Level 2: when the inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation3.4

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and entities controlled
by the Bank. Control is achieved when the Bank:

Has power over the subsidiary;
• Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary; and

Has the ability to use its power to affect its subsidiary's returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls a subsidiary if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of a subsidiary, it has power over the subsidiary
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary
unilaterally.

The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Bank's voting rights in

a subsidiary are sufficient to give it power, including:

The size Of the Bank's holding of voting rights, its concentration in relation to the remaining holding Of

voung rights of the other shareholders and the size of its distribution among them.
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The expected and potential voting power of the bank to the remaining voting power of rhe owners and
other parties.
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.
Any additional facts and circumstances may indicate that the Bank has, or does not have, the ability to

manage and direct the main activities of the subsidiary at the time require declsion-making, and this includes
the votingmethodology that the shareholders used in previous meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begrns when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income from the date the Bank
gains controluntil the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive Income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
the bank and subsidiary are eliminated upon consolidation of the financial statements.

3.5 Foreicyn currencies transactions

Transact-tons In foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date ofthe transactions.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at date of preparing
consolidated financial statements, profits/ losses are recognized in the consolidated statement ofcomprehensive
Income. Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date ofthe transaction. Non-moneta1Yitems carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined, revaluation gain/ loss are
recognized as part of the fair value.

\V'11en preparing the consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of the subsidiary which are prepared
in currency other than the currency used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are translated
at the average rates of currencies at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Exchange rates differences
resulted from revaluating net investment in the subsidiary are recognrzed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Yemeni Rial ("YR") and all the values are rounded to
nearest thousand Rials, except when otherwise indicated.

3.6 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument except for "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets which are
recognized on settlement date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, if any) are added to or deducted from fair value of the

to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.
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3.7 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases

or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or conventionin the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following specific categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans
and advances to customers and available-for-sale financial investments. The classification of financial assets is
determined upon initial listing, depending on the nature of the financial assets and the purpose of their
acquisition.

3.7.1 Held to maturitv investments

Financial assets at amortized cost with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group
has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity investments.

Financial instruments are Initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

Held-to-maturity Investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method, less any impairment losses, with revenue recognized on an effective yield basis i.e. based on actual
results.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment on held to maturity investments carried at amortized cost has
been incurred, the amount of impairment loss recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income is the difference between the asset's carrytng amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the investments' original effective interest rate.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition using an effective
interest rate method. Therefore, held to maturity investments are recognized at nominal value after deducting
issuance discount as at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

3.7.2 Loans and advance

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and it is expected that substantially all of the initial investments will be recovered other than

because of credit deterioration. Loans and receivables (including direct credit facilities to customers, Loans,

advances, and debit balances and other assets) are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less

allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The losses arising from
Impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

3.7.3 Available for sale financial investments

Available for sale financial investments are non-derivatives that are either designated as available for sale financial
investments or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments. AFSFI are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold to meet liquidity requirements or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs

and are subsequently measured at fair value.
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The fall values of quoted financial assets in active markets are based on current prices, The Group's AFSFI
these are unquoted and are not traded in an active market, are stated at cost less impairment unless fair value at

the end of each reporting period can be reliably measured.

If an available-for-sale financial Investment is Impaired, the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayments and amortization) and the current fair value, less any previous impairment loss recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is removed from equity and recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive Inconw.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in the other comprehensive Income statement
and recorded in cumulative changes in fair value with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated

using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets which are
recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income. \Xhere the Investment is disposed
of or is determined to be Impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized In equity in the cumulative

changes in fair value is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income for the year.

3.7.4 Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method ofcalculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and ofallocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
Interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt

instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest Income is calculated using the effective Interest rate method and the dividends from available for sale
financing investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income. Any other

changes in the value of financial assets are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, as
well as reserves of the fair value of the investments. Interest Income is recognized by applying the effective

Interest rate, except for loans and short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

When financial assets are sold or when impairment is recognized, gains or losses which were previously
assembled in fair value reserve of investments are reclassified in profit or loss.

Dividends on financial assets are recognlzed in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends IS

established.

3.7.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the date of each consolidated statement of financial position whether there is objective
evidence of impairment of a financial asset or a Group of financial assets. The value of the financial asset or
Group of financial assets decreases and the impairment loss Incurred if, and only if, there was objective evidence

as a result of one or more events after the initial recognition of the asset ("loss event"), and that loss event (or

events) has an Impact on the expected future cash flows for a financial asset or Group of financial assets that

can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence of impairment of a financial asset or a Group of financial assets includes observable data

that comes to the Group's attention about loss events:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
Breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
Group grants a waiver to the borrower, for economlc or legal reasons due to the borrower's financial

difficulty, which in its absence the lender is not seen the subject of such waiver; or
It is becommg probable that borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
The disappearance of an acuve market for such financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Observable infnrmntinn indicating rhflt there is a mensurable decrease tn the estimated future cash flows nf
a class of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although it was not possible to

determtne impairment of Individual financial asset In the class, Including:
o There is adverse change in the payment status of the borrower or,
o Economic conditions national or local that comcides with settlement defaults on assets in the class.

Group assess availability of any objective evidence for impairment in values of financial assets on a collective
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. If the Group identified the absence ofobjective
evidence about existence of impalrment of financial asset which is individually assessed, whether significant or
not, is added to a class of financial assets with similar credit risk charactenstics for assessing Impairment existence
in this class collectively.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment is Inserted into or continued to Insert an Impairment loss In
its value are not included in the collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an Impairment loss has been Incurred on loans and advances carried at

amortized cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrylng amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been Incurred)
discounted according to the actual interest rate of the financial asset. The carrytng amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of the provision and the amount of the loss is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If the loan has a variable Interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any Impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined according to the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of the instrument's fair value using an observable market price

Future cash flows in a Group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of contractual cash flows to financial assets and historical loss experience to financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. Historical experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the
effects of current conditions that did not affect past periods, and to remove the effects of past conditions that

do not exist currently.

The estimations must be reflected in the future cash flows of a Group of assets, and should be in line with the

changes in the related information that can be monitored from time to time. (For example, changes in the

unemployment rates, real estate prices, payment position or other factors that indicate changes in the loss
possibilities in the group and its size).

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash flows of the financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result frommortgage less costs for obtaining and selling the mortgage, whether a potential foreclosure

or not.

The methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to
reduce any differences between estimated losses and actual loss.

Financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics are added to a class for assessing impairment existence In

this class collectively (i.e. taking into account asset type, location, warranty. Previous accrual and other related
characteristics).

These characteristics are related to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of those assets, as they indicate
the ability of the debtor to pay all accruals amounts according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

If a loan is uncollectible, were to follow all the necessary legal procedures and the final loss has been determined,
it is written off against the provision associated with a decrease the value of the loan. And such loans are written
off after completing all the necessary procedures and determine the amount of the loss. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrylng amount
of the allowance account are recognized in in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.
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In case of loans if the decreased amount of the impairment loss in a subsequent period can be attributed

objectively to an event occurred after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement In the credit

rating of the debtor), the impairment loss previously recognized will be reversed by adjusting the allowance

account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In case of significant or prolonged decline at fair value of financial assets below its cost is considered in

determining the existence of decline in the valueof the asset. If such evidence exists for available for sale financial

assets, then its accumulative losses are removed, which is measured as the difference between the acquisition

cost and the current fair value less any Impairment loss on that financial asset listed previously with profit or
loss, from the consolidated statement of equity and to be included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income.

3.7.6 Provision for loans, advances to customers, and contingent liabilities

In addition to the above, and for the purpose ofapplymg the Central Bank of Yemen instructions as per circular

No. (6) of 1996, and circular No. (5) of 1998 and circular No. (8) of 2015 regarding the classification of assets
and liabilities; a provision of direct credit facilities at amortized cost and contingent liabilities is made, in addition
to a provision for general risks calculated on the total of loans and advances and other liabilities after deducting

any balance secured by deposits and bank guarantees issued by foreign worthy banks. The provision is

determined based on periodic comprehensive reviews of the credit portfolio and contingent liabilities.
Accordingly, the provision is provided In accordance with the following rates at least:

Description
Performing loans and advances, contingent liabilities
Performing Loans and advances (including watch list accounts)

Performing contingent liabilities (including watch list accounts)
Non-performing loans, advances and contingent liabilities
Substandard loans, advances and contingent liabilities
Doubtful loans, advances and contingent liabilities
Bad loans, advances and contingent liabilities

20

1%

10000

Loans, and advances to customers are presented on the consolidated statement of financial position net of

provisions and uncollected interests. Loans are written off if procedures taken towards their collection prove
useless, or if directed by CBY inspection upon review of the portfolio by debiting the provision. Proceeds from

loans previously written off in prior years are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
under "other income".

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the CBY issued circular No. (8) of 2015, including an amendment
of provision percentage on performing direct loans and advances from 10 0 to 2%.

3.7.7 De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset

and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Derecognizing of a financial asset at amortized cost In its entirety IS measured by the difference between the
asset's carrytng amount and the sum of the consideration received in addition to receivable and is recogntzed in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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3.8 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at amortized cost only (i.e. other financial
liabilities).

3.8.1 Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including amounts due to banks, customer's deposits, credit balances and other
liabilities) are initially measured at their fair value which is the cost at the time of transaction and subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

The effective Interestmethod is a method ofcalculating the amortized cost ofa financial liability and ofallocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financtal
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Interest expense is recogntzed on an effective interest basis, except for short-termpayables when the recognition
of interest would be immaterial. All the financial liabilities of the Group are short term in nature.

3.8.2 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group de-recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognized and
the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand, balances with the Central Bank (other than reserve balances), current accounts with other banks
in addition to held to maturity investments and certificates of deposits which are due within three months.

3.10 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Bank has access at that date under current market conditions regardless of whether that

price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

The Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument
if available. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability takes place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricmg information on an ongoing basis.

there is no quoted price In an active market, the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
Incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in prictng a transaction.

The fair value is measured by one of the followingmethods:

Comparing the fair value of another similar financial asset;
• Discounting estimated future cash flows; or
• Pricing options techniques.
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The valuation methods aim to arrive at a fair value that reflects the expectations ofmarket participants, expected
risks and expected benefits of fair value estimation. the fair value cannot be measured reliably, financial
assets are stated at cost or amortized cost.

3.11 Intangible assets

Usufruct is recorded at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, and is

depreciated over the period of usufruct contract.

Usufruct is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gam or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of the asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.

3.12 Property and equipment

3.12.1 Recoonition and measurement

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost ofmaterials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a

working condition for their intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment
is capitalized as part of that equipment.

1%en parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items, (major components) of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefit is
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. "Ihe gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and
equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and
equipment, and is recognized net within "other income/expenses" tn the statement of comprehensive Income.
When revalued assets are sold, any related amount included in the revaluation surplus reserve is transferred to

retamed earnings.

3.12.2 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrytng amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the
Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income as Incurred.

3.12.3 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the cost of property and equipment less its residual value - if any -.

The useful life is estimated for each part of the fixed asset, and if this part has a different useful life from the
rest of the components of the asset, it will be depreciated separately.
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These properties - except for land - are depreciated using a straight-line method and the amount of which is

charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income and over its estimated useful life.

The following is a statement of the estimated useful lives of those properties for the purposes of calculating
depreciation:

Statement
Buildings and constructions
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

Estimated Useful Lives
5-50 years
5 - 10 years
5-20 years
5 - 10 years
2 - 5 years

It is reviewed annually by the Group's management knowledge of both the depreciation method and the
estimated useful life as well as the values estimated as scrap at the end of the estimated useful life of that property

• (if any).

Impainnent of tangible and intangible assets3.13

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrytng amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such Indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

W'hen it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, assets are allocated to individual cash-generatingunits, or they are allocated
to the smallest Group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than it carrying amount,
the carrying amount of it is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued
amount, in which case the Impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is

Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrytng amount does not
exceed the carrytng amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset (or cash-generatingunit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.14 Valuation of assets transferred to the Group's ownership as a repayment of loans

The assets that the ownership transferred to the group are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under the item "debit balances and other assets" in accordance with the Instructions of the Central
Bank ofYemen, with the value they have transferred to the Group minus any decrease in their value at the date

of the financial statements - if any -, and the value of this decrease is charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive Income.
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3.15 Contingent liabilities and commitm ents

Contingent liabilities and commitments (after deducting retained guarantees) in which the Group is a party are
shown outside the consolidated statement of financial position under the item "Contingent liabilities and
commitments" considering that they do not represent actual assets or liabilities as at the consolidated financial
position date.

3.16 Other provisions

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined,
(when the effect of the time value of money is material), by discounting the expected future cash flows using a

rate that reflects current market assessments, the time value ofmoney and the risks related to the liability, when
appropriate.

3.17 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.17.1 Net interest income

Interest Income and expense IS recognrzed in "net interest Income" as "Interest Income" and "interest expense'
in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument over the expected life of
the financial Instrument or over a shorter period, whichever is appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial assets or financial liabilities. Future cash flows are estimated taking into account all contractual terms
of the instrument. The effective interest rate calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to a contract that are increasingly due directly to specific lending arrangements, transaction costs, and all
other bonuses or discounts. For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (if any), transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Interest is credited to debts that are past due for three months (low-value financial assets - non-performing
debts) that are not paid marginally and are not raised on clients' debts and are not added to the statement of
comprehensive income only when they are collected and after they have collected the principal of the debt.

3.17.2 Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral part of effective
interest income (see above). The fees included in this part of the Group's consolidated statement of

comprehensive income include among other things, fees charged for servicing a loan and non-utilization fees
relating to loan commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending arrangement. Fees
and commission income with regards to services are accounted for as the services are received.

3.17.3 Dividends income

Dividend's income is recognized when the right to receive payments is established. This is the ex-dividend date

for listed equity securities (if any), and usually the date when shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted
equity securities.
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a.

b.

3.19

Retirement and social insurance

Group's employees pay their share in return for social security according to the Yemeni Social Insurance

Law No. (26) for the year 1991, as well as Law No. (25) 1991 regarding insurances and pensions.
Contributions are paid to the General Organization for Social Insurance and the General Authority for

Insurances and Pensions before the tenth day of the next month. The Group's contribution is charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.

The provisions of Social Insurance Law are applied to all employees of the Group concerning the end
of service benefits.

Income Tax

The taxes owed by the bank are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Law No. (17) of 2010, and a

provision is made for tax obligations after conducting the necessary study.

3.19.1 Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using the tax rates prevailing
at reportingdate.

3.19.2 Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided for all temporary differences between the carrylng amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax is calculated based on
the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. The tax

effects on the temporary differences are disclosed as deferred tax.

Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which unused tax losses and credit can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax arising from revaluation of investments is recognized (if any) as adjustment over the surplus/
(deficit) arising from revaluation.

3.20 Zakat due on shareholders

The due Zakat is calculated on Group according to laws and instructions In the Republic of Yemen, and a

provision is creating for the due Zakat. The Group remits the Zakat due on the shareholders to the relevant
governmental authority which decides on the allocation of Zakat.

3.21 Consigned assets

Consigned assets are not considered part of the Group's assets; therefore, they are not included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

3.22 Segment information

Segment is a differentiable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or rendering
services (business segment), or in providing products and services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments.
The main form of a report on the Group's segment information is business segments based on the management
structure and internal reporting. The main business of the Group is in sector of banking services provided to

retail, corporates and banks.
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3.23 Disidends for ordinan shares

Dividend distributions for ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are approved by
the shareholders. Dividend distributions for the year declared after the consolidated statement of financial
position date are dealt with in a separate note.

3.24 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profits (losses) of ordinary stock holders in the bank by
the number of shares or the weighted average for number of shares outstanding during the year.

3.25 Com parative figures

All amounts are included with the comparative figures, except as permitted by accounting standards or
interpretations.

3.26 Parent company information

Statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income of the bank (Parent) as disclosed in the

supplementary notes to the financial statements are prepared by using the same accounting policies as mentioned
above.

Critical accountincy assumptions and key sources of estimation of4.

uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires from the Group's management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the financial assets and liabilities shown at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, and created provisions and changes in fair value during the year. These estlmates are based
on assumptions including many factors, which varies the degree of certainty, and these differences in actual

results from management's estimates lead to changes in estimated future liabilities and assets.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based primarily on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable according to the circumstances.

The following are the estimations followed in preparing the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of investments4.1

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as financial assets as

available for sale or held to maturity.

4.1.1 Available for sale assets

Management follows the guidance set out in International Accounting Standard IAS (39) Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement on classifying non-derivative as AFS assets.

4.1.2 Held to maturity investments

The management follows the guidance of IAS (39) on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires significant judgments.
In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.
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If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances for example,
selling an Insignificant amount close to maturity, it will be required to classify the entire class as available for

sale. The investments could, therefore, be measured at fair value, not at amortized cost.

4.2 Fair value estimation

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. If a quoted market price is not available, fair
value is estimated based on discounted cash flow and other valuation techniques.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management's best
estimates and the discount rate is a market-related rate for a similar instrument at the reporting date.

4.3 Impairment losses on loans and advances

The purpose of the review of credit portfolio of customers is to determine the required provision for loans and
advances balances, contingent liabilities and commitments which are studied in line with the laws and regulations
issued by the Central Bank of Yemen.

In addition to laws and regulations issued by the Central Bank of Yemen Circular No. (6) of 1996, the Bank
takes into account the following factors in the study:

Analytical study of the customer's financial situation based on the financial statements and cash flows provided

by the customer in addition to the movement of their accounts held with the group.
The credit limit to the customer.

The proportion of risk analysis, i.e., customer's ability to implement a profitable business and collect enough
cash for the repaymentof amount borrowed.
The value of the mortgage and the possibility of re-owned.
The cost of debt recovery.
The client's obligations with Tax Authority and the Social Security Corporation.

The Group's policy requires regular and periodic review for impairment provisions on credit facilities, in addition
to the periodic evaluation ofmortgages and make sure of the possibility of recovery.

The classification of loans as non-performing loans continues unless reclassified as current loans and the
collection of interest and the principal amount of the loan are considered probable. The provision of loan losses

is calculated and included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment losses on AFS investments4.4

The Group determines that shares' prices are impaired when there is a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below its cost. The determination of what is significant or long-term requires judgment. In making
this judgment, themanagement evaluates, among other factors, the normal course of volatility in the share price.

In addition, impairment may be approprtate when there is evidence ofdeterioration in the financial situation of
the investor and the performance of the field work, the sector and the changes in the technical, operational and
financing cash flows.

4.5 Useful lives of property and equipment

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives. The calculation of
useful lives is based on management's assessment of various factors such as the operating cycles, maintenance

programs, and normal wear and tear using best estimates.
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5. Capital manacrement

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure compliance with the capital requirements
issued by the Central Bank of Yemen, and to ensure that the Group mamtatns an outstanding credit rating, as
well as a good capital adequacy ratio above the mltumum required to keep it .The group monitors capital
adequacy in accordance with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Yemen In this regard, usingmethods
in accordance with the standards applied by the Central Bank of Yemen for monitortng purposes. The group
prepares periodic reports (every 3 months) on the capital adequacy ratio, according to the Central Bank of
Yemen Circular No. (2) of 1997.

The Central Bank of Yemen requires banks operating in Yemen to maintain the ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets at an internationally recognized ratio of (8%) as a minimum, and the bank must maintain a ratio
of total capital to customer's deposits of (5%) as a minimum.

The capital adequacy ratio is calculated in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank ofYemen by
comparing the components of the core and supplementary capital with the total assets and liabilities of the bank,

which are shown in the financial statements after weighting them with risk weights as follow:

Core capital

Supplementary capital

Total Capital

Risk-weighted assets and liabilities:
Total assets
Contingent liabilities and commitments
Total risk-weighted assets and liabilities
Capital adequacy ratio

2020
YR'OOO

61,817
347

62.164

54,232
23 027
77,259
80,460/0

2019
YR'OOO

52,469
136

52,605

63,104
8,695
71,799
73.27%

The core capital consists of the paid-up capital, reserves and retained earnings (after excluding contributions to

the capital of any local bank or local financial group), while the Supplementary capital consists of general
provisions on performing debts at a rate of 1%, not exceed more than 20/0 of the risk weighted assets.

6. Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Cash on hand and ATMs
Local currency balances
Foreiqn currencies' balances

Reserve Balances with Central Bank of Yemen*
Local currency balances
Foreign currencies' balances

2020
YR'OOO

4,468,516
2,247,165
6,715,681

18,516 248
36,814,545

43 530 226

2019
YR'OOO

5,104,533
4,253,265
9,357,798

21

18 251 659
39,252,301

48,610 099
* In accordance with regulation of the Central Bank ofYemen, a mandatory reserve is maintained with the

CBY calculated in 2020 as 10% of the total on customers' deposits in foreign currencies and 7% of the total
on customers' deposits in local currency (2019: 10% and 7% of the total on customers' deposits in foreign
currency and of the total on customers' deposits in local currency respectively). The Bank does not get any
interest income on mandatory reserve balances with CBY.
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7. Due from banks

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Balances with local banks
Time deposits
Current accounts

Balances with foreiqn banks
Time deposits

Current accounts

Balances with Central Bank of Yemen -current account
Local currency balances
Foreign currencies' balances

Total balances due from banks

Less: Impairment provision on balances with banks

Notes

7.1

2020
YR'OOO

9,980,538

9,980,538

67,629,892
18 353,590
85,983,482

7,938,155
10,825 843
18,763,998

114,728,018

96,083 277

2019
YR'OOO

7,216,413
3 753,750
10,970,163

73,660,899
32 607 ,624
106,268,523

10 695,101
15,695,811

132,934,497

(6, 717 ,894)
126 216 603

Time deposits with foreign and local banks carry variable interest rates while current accounts with such foreign
banks do not carry any interest. Reserved deposits as guarantee with foreign banks amounted to YR 5,142,263
thousand as at December 31, 2020 (2019: YR 4,001,036 thousand) and on March 18, 2021, according to the

settlement agreement signed between Yemen International Bank - Yemen and Bank of Beirut - Lebanon, the

Group's management purchased 427,125 thousand bonds (Eurobonds) via the Government of Lebanon for

USD 170,850 thousand at 40 cents per bond (USD) equivalent to YR 42,755,212 thousand against a portion of
the Bank's balances with the Bank ofBeirut-Lebanon (balances with foreign banks).

7.1 Impairment provision on balanceswith banks

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31:

Balance as at January 1

Provided during the year*
Provision balance at the end of the year

2020
YR'OOO

6,717,894
11 926 847
18,644,741

2019
YR'OOO

38,457
6 679 437
6,717,894

*

8.

The economic situation in the Republic of Lebanon and its local banking system has been subjected to a

large degree of uncertainty and the current lack of clarity about the potential negative effects on the

Lebanese economy and the banking sector. As a result of these events, a provision for impatrment was
provided on the bank balances due with the Bank ofBeirut and other Lebanese banks at 450 0 of the bank
balances referred to, in addition to the balances of other banks that are not moving from year to another.

Held to maturity investments

Held to maturitv Investments re resent in this item consists of the followin as of December 31:

Investments not listed - Amortized cost

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

2020
YR'OOO

540 847 447
540 847 447

2019
YR'OOO

504 711 273
504 711 273
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9. Customers loans and advances
This item consists of the following as of December 31 :

Financing accounts - Overdrafts

Loans to customers
Loans and advances to employees

Less:
Impairment provision on loans and advances (performing and
non-performing)
Uncollected interest

Notes

9.1

9.2

2020
YR'OOO

3,094,008
137,980

67,520,111

(52,312,592)

(1,148,144)
14,059,375

2019
YR'OOO

61

3,583,277
98,298

65,273,704

(44,911 ,635)

19,245,194
In accordance to Banking Law No. (38) of 1998, Article No. (85) and Income Tax Law No. (17) of 2010,Article
No. (14), All provisions created in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Yemen regarding
loans, credit facilities and contingent liabilities are exempted from being subject to income tax.

Non-performing loans and advances amounted to YR 60,370,030 thousand as at December 31, 2020 (2019: YR
59,795,451 thousand). The Bank maintains a variety of good guarantees, such as real estate, cash guarantees
against loans and advances granted to customers. Cash guarantees against credit, loans and other facilities
amounted to YR 8,149,983 thousand as at December 31, 2020 (2019: YR 10,905,203 thousand). The following
are details of loans and advances covered with cash arantees:

Substandard loans and advances
Doubtful loans and advances
Bad loans and advances

Performing loans and advances

Substandard loans and advances
Doubtful loans and advances
Bad loans and advances

Performing loans and advances

Loans &
Advances

YR'OOO

563,645
3, 139,084

7,150,081
67,520,111

Loans &
Advances

YR'OOO

198,692
394,759

59,202,000
59,795,451

5,478,253
65,273,704

2020
Cash

Guarantees
YR'OOO

(1 ,081)
(15,002)

(5,911,157)
(5,927,240)

(2,222,743)
(8,149,983)

2019
Cash

Guarantees
YR'OOO

(22,172)
(92,382)

(9,116,623)

9.1 Impairment provision on loans and advances (performing and non-performing)

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Balance as at January 1

Add: Provided during the year
Less: Used during the year
Less: Reversed during the year
Foreign currencies revaluation differences

Balance at December 31

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Notes

27

26

Specific
YR'OOO

44,895,500
7,599,541
(372,072)

98,891
52 221 860

2020
General
YR'OOO

16,135
74,597

90 732

Net
YR'OOO

562,564
3, 124,082

50,756,144
54,442,790

4,927,338
59,370,128

Net
YR'OOO

176,520
302 ,377

3,689,673

Total

YR'OOO

44,911 ,635

(372,072)

98,891
52 312 592
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This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31:

Balance as at January I

Adjustments to opening balance
Add: Provided during the year
Less: Used during the year
Less: Reversed during the year
Transferred to specific provision
Transferred to provision for impairment of bank balances
Foreign currencies revaluation differences

Balance at December 31

Notes

27

26

Specific
YR'OOO

45,883,182
(203,201 )

(22,456)
(746,538)

37,949
(38,457)
(14,979)

44,895,500

2019
General
YR'OOO

54,084

(37 ,949)

16,135

'Total
YR'OOO

45,937,266
(203,201)

(22,456)
(746,538)

(38,457)
_(14,979)_

44,911,635
In accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Yemen, provisions are classified into specific and
non-specific (general provision for debts and facilities). Based on the instructions of the Central Bank ofYemen,
a 10/0 provision is provided for all performing direct credit facilities and indirect facilities after deducting related
cash margins.

During the year ended on December 31, 2015, the Central Bank ofYemen has issued Circular No. (8), which
refers to adjusting the provision percentage on performing regular direct loans and advances from 1% to 2%.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS (39), measurement method can be applied for impairment of credit
facilities and financial assets based on the groups by applying the study of impairment on the sets of credit
facilities and financial assets that have been studied and analyzed individually and proved not to be impaired,
while there are Indications of impairment in similar groups, and the decline in the value ofeach asset within that

Group cannot be identified.

9.2 Uncollected in terest

Uncollected interests are due interests on non-performing loans and advances, which is recognized as revenue
only when actually collected in accordance with the CBY instmctions.

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31 :

Balance at January 1

Increase during the vear
Balance at December 31

10. Available for sale financing investments

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31 :

Yemeni- Qatari Insurance Company
Yemeni Financial Services Company

Less: Impairment of available for sale financing

investments

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Notes Contribution
Percentage

15%
2.39%

10.1

2020
YR'OOO

1,116,875
31.269

1 148 144

2020
YR'OOO

120,000
33,934
153,934

(33,934)
120,000

2019
YR'OOO

26.979
1 116,875

2019
YR'OOO

120,000
33 736

153,736

(33,736)
120 ooo
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Available for sale financing investments represent in unquoted investments, due to the difficulty of obtainmg a

reliable estimate of fair value for these investments and there are no quoted market prices and future cash flows
are not determinable, these Investments were carried at cost.

The decline was calculated for the entire value of the investment in the Yemeni Financial Services Company,
due to the absence of distributions from that investment during the past years, as well as the non-expectation of
receiving any dividends in the coming years.

All financial investments available for sale are not rated by international rating companies.

10.1 Impairment of available for sale financing investments

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31

Balance at January 1

Provided during the year
Balance at December 31

11. Debit balances and other assets

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Assets transferred to the bank ownership as a repayment of debts
of customers
Unearned accrued interest

Prepaid expenses
Other debit balances

Less:
Provision for doubtful debts balances and other assets

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Notes

11.1

2020
YR'OOO

33,736
198

33,934

2020
YR'000

811,415
305,231
180,932

2,219,736
3,517,314

(2,832,677)
684 637

2019
YR'OOO

33,736

33,736

2019
YR'OOO

811,415
415,700
146,494

2,276,634
3,650,243

(3,057.999)
592,244

30



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31 , 2020

11.1 Provision for doubtful debts balances and other assets

This item consists of the following as of December 31 :

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Provided during the year
Less: Used during the year
Less: Reversed during the year
Balance at end of the year

12. Intangible assets

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31:

Usufruct
Lands in Aden
Costs of studies and consulting

Revaluation differences from assets in foreign currencies
Total cost of Usufruct

Impairment losses of intangible assets

Notes

27

26

2020'

VYR'OOO

3,057,999

(225,322)
2,832,677

2020
YR'OOO

127,995
249,512

2019
YR'000

1,577,157

3,057,999

2019
YR'OOO

127,995
249,512

Usufruct represents the usage rights of the land of 26,181 square meters relinquished by one of the

shareholders in the subsidiary, afforded by the Public Authority for Lands and Survey and Urban Planning
in Aden city (free of charge) and under the record of temporary transmission dated December 22, 2010, to

identify the streets and the buildings for the investment project number (264/2010).
According to the handing over conditions by the Public Authority for Lands and Survey and Urban
Planning ofAden, Ocean Breeze will be granted a lease contract for 99 years if the investment cost of the
project will be less than USD 10 million, orwill be awarded free ofcharge ownership contract if the project
investment cost will exceed USD 10 million.

Based on the instructions of the Local Authority in Aden, Ocean Breeze was granted a time frame of 24
months to execute the project, such period starts from the date of receiving the licenses for the execution
of the project. However, the Public Authority for Lands and Survey and Urban Planning in Aden city has
the right to retrieve the land and any constructions on the land.
In the subsequent periods, the Group could not get the usufruct or the ownership of the land which was
recognized as an intangible asset in the amount ofYR 1,463,024 thousand as at December 31, 2020 (2019:

YR 1 ,463,024 thousand) due to failure to complete the licensing procedures for the execution of the project
from the date of receiving the land transmlssion document dated in December 22, 2010, which does not

represent a proof of ownership. This land is granted free of charge to Ocean Breeze for Investment and
Development Co. Ltd. (subsidiary company).
The above-mentioned events represent fundamental indicators may lead to the inability of the Ocean
Breeze Company for Investment and Development Co. Ltd. to continue as a going concern due to the fact
that the company is not able until the date of these consolidated financial statements to get the usufruct or
proof of the ownership of the land. These eventsmade the management recogmzes an impairment loss of
assets equals to 100% of usufruct ("intangible assets").
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13. Property and equipment

This item consists of the following as of December 31 :

Cost
Balances at January 1, 2020
Additions

Disposals
Balance at December 31 , 2020

Accumulated Depreciation
Balances at January 1, 2020
Depreciation of the year
Disposals
Adjustments during the year
Balance at December 31, 2020

Net book value at December 31,

Used depreciation rates
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2020

Lands
YR'OOO

446,053

446,053

053

Buildings and
•constructions

YR'OOO

1,364,126
180,184

1,544,310

614,630
168,609

783,239

761 071

20/0-200/0

Furniture &
Fixtures
YR'OOO

508,122
56,689

564,811

422,851
32,924

455,775

109,036

Machinery &
Equipment

YR'OOO

2,139,188
65,078

2,204,266

1,901 ,083
115,909

(3,472)

2,013,520

190,746

Motor
Vehicles
YR'OOO

474,964
67,802

542,766

451,791
15,878

467,669

75 097

-Computer
Equipment

YR'000Ä

2,154,536
219,328

2,373,864

1,378,977
431 ,895

1,810,872

562 992

Total
YR'OOO

7,086,989
589,081

7,676,070

4,769,332
765,215

(3,472Y
5,534 ,075

2 144,995
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This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31:

Cost
Balances at January I, 2019
Additions

Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
Balances at January 1, 2019
Depreciation of the year
Disposals
Adjustments during the year
Balance at December@l, 2019

Net book value at December 31

Used depreciation rates
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2019

Lands
YR'OOO

446,053

446,053

446,053

Buildings and
constructions

YR'OOO

1,364,126

1,364,126

619,208
66,032

70,610)
614,630

749 496

Furniture &
Fixtures
YR'OOO

489,058
19,064

508,122

405,215
17,636

422 851

85 271

Machinery &
Equipment

YR'OOO

2,075,309
63,927

(48)
2,139,188

1,865,952
44,969

(48)
(9,790)

1,901,083

238,105

50/0-200/0

Motor
Vehicles
YR'OOO

476,995
4,503

(6,534)
474,964

455,479
2,846

(6,534)

451 791

23,173

Computer
Equipment

YR'OOO

1,689,169
465,367

2,154,536

1,310,170
68,807

1 378 977

775 559

200/0-500/0

Total
YR'000

6,540,710
552,861
(6,582)

7,086,989

4,656,024
200,290
(6,582)

(80,400b
4 769,332

2 317 657
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14. Right to use leased assets

This item consists of the following as of December 31 :

Cost
Balance at January 1 ,

Additions to the right to use leased assets during the year

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation at January 1 ,

Depreciation of the year
Balance at December 31

Net right to use leased assets as at December 31,

15. Due to banks

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Current accounts
Local currency balances
Foreign currencies balances

Time deposits
Local currency balances
Foreign currencies balances

Total balances due to banks

2020
YR'OOO

813,763
23,442
837 205

130,885
138,967
269,852

567,353

2020
YR'OOO

3,032,671
21 ,631 ,545

36,745,582

36,745,582

58,377,127

2019
YR'OOO

751,033
62 730
813 763

130 885
130,885

682,878

2019
YR'OOC

168,880
34,239,316

24,179,970

24,179,970

58,419,286
Current accounts and time deposits due to banks and financial institutions carry different rates of interest.

16. Customers' deposits

16.1 Customers' deposits according to type

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Current and demand accounts
Time deposits
Savings accounts
Cash guarantees, LCs and LGs
Other deposits

2020
YR'OOO

225,563,244
186,962,119
25,243,383

4,280,810
452 707 740

2019
YR'OOO

239,509,291
219,938,852
23,930,981
7,059,154
5,657 325

496 095 603

Time deposits and saving accounts bear fixed interest rates during the deposit period, while other current
accounts, cash margins, and other deposits earn nil interest.

Customers' deposits as at December 31, 2020 include amounts booked for direct and indirect credit facilities
amounted to YR 8,149,983 thousand (YR 10,905,203 thousand as at December 31, 2019).
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16.2 Customers' deposits according to sectors

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Corporations
Public and mixed sector
Individuals
Others

17. Credit balances and other liabilities

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Income tax
Zakat
Accrued interest

Accrued expenses
Lease contracts liabilities
Unearned revenue
Other credit balances and liabilities

17.1 Income tax

Notes

17.1

17.2

17.3

2020
YR'OOO

176,556,019
63,379,084
67 906,160
452 707 740

2020
YR'000

8,773,771
5,818,397
3,690,473
626,378
600,020
17,283

2 106,942
21 633,264

2019
YR'OOO

193,477 ,285
158,750,593
69,453,385
74 414 340
496 095 603

2019
YR'OOO

8,012,788
, 019

411 ,857
702,775
33,112

2 457 688
19 812 361

Income tax is provided at 20% for the year 2020 (2019:20%) of the annual amended profit for tax purposes. The
table below shows the movement ofincome tax provision:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Balance as at December 31

17.2 Zakat

2020
YR'OOO

8,012,788
7,822,657

(7,061 ,674)
8,773 771

2019
YR'OOO

4,122,594
6,513,317
(2,623,123)
8 012 788

Zakat is calculated at 2.5775% of the Zakat base according to the modified growth method, which is established
in accordance with the decision of the Chairman of the General Authority for Zakat No. (41) of 2018 regarding
the zakat calculation guide.

Following are the details of the movements ofZakat as at December 31:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Balance as at December 31
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2020
YR'OOO

4, 723,860
(3,055,482)
5 818 397

2019
YR'OOO

2,684,765
2,827,686

4 150 019
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17..3 Lease contracts liabilities

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31 :

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provided during the year
Debit interest

Paid during the year
Balance as at December 31

18. Other provisions

This item consists of the following as ofDecember 31:

2020
YR'000

702,775
23,442
38,365

(164,502)
600,020

December, 31, 20205
Foreign

Currencies
Fluctuation

Provision and the
Impacton the

Provisionsfoi E*posedForeigm,
Contingent CUrrencies

Claims Positions

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Providedduring the year
Less: Used during the year
Less: Reversed during the year
Balance as at December 31

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Provided during the year
Less: Used during the year
Less: Reversed during the year
Balance as at December 31

26

Notes

27

26

Rr' vision foreontingenv
Liabilities

120,067
135,794

255 861

Provision fon
Contingent
Liabilities

196,238

(76.171)
120 067

YR'OOO

13,357,215
539,870

(349,529)
(2.000,000)
11 547 556

YR'OOO

62,204,166
29,476,331

91 680 497

December 31, 2019
Foreign

Currencies
Fiuctuation

Ptovision and the
Impact on the

Provisionsfor Exposed Foreign
Contingent

Claims o

YR'OOO

10,281 ,910

3,283,607
(208,302)

13 357 215

Currencies
(Positions

YR'000

14,857,556

62 204 166

2019
VR'OOO

751 ,033
62,730
44,837

(155,825)_
702,775

*Total
YR'OOO

75,681 ,448
30,151 ,995

(349,529)
(2 000,000)
103 483 914

Total
YRjOOO

57,824,758
18,141,163
(208,302)
(76.171)

75 681 448
a. Provision for contingent liabilities is calculated at 10/0 on the total contingent liabilities after deducting

balances secured by deposits and guarantees issued by highly credit rated foreign banks.
b. As described in note (33.3), and in accordance with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Yemen to

all banks operating in the Republic ofYemen, which stated that foreign currencies sensitivity analysis should
be performed and presented regarding the effect of foreign currencies fluctuations on the financial
statements, based on the exchange rate of the parallel market and stating the effect of such change on the
consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, and banks holding short foreign currencies financial
positions should create a provision for losses related to the exposure of the difference between the value of
the foreign currencies short positions according to the closing rates as per CBY instructions and the average
parallel market exchange rate.
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19. Share capital

In accordance with the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly of the Bank held on August 8, 2016,
the capital was increased by distributing 15,000,000 shares, as free shares at the rate of one free share for each

owner of ten shares, as a transfer from the accumulated profits, so that the capital becomes YR 16,500 million.

It is divided into 165,000,000 shares with a nominal value of YR 100 per share. The Bank in the process
completing the procedures related to the amendment of the Articles of Association and the Commercial
Registration that reflect the capital increase incurred during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Statutory reserve20.

As per article (12-1) of the Yemeni Banking Law No. (38) of 1998, 1 50/0 of the net profit for the year should be

transferred to the statutory reserve until the reserve equals two times the paid-up capital. The Group's
management cannot use the reserve without a prior approval from the Central Bank ofYemen. During the fiscal
year 2020, the Bank transferred an amount ofYR 2,537,058 thousand (2019: YR 2,355,299 thousand) from the
net profit for the year to the statutory reserve.

21. Contingent liabili ties and commitments

This item consists of the following as of December 31:

Commitrnents
YR'OOO

6,444,757

29,799,570
36,244,327

2020
Margin

Held.
YR'000

(3,245,455)
(7,412,729)

Letters of guarantee
Letters of credit

Interest income22.

Gornm nts
VR'OOO

3,199,302

22,386,841
25,586,143

Grose

YR'OOO

12,522,420

6,544,394
19,066,814

201W
Margin
Held

YR'OW

(4,655,957)

2020

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Interest from loans and advances
Interest from due from banks

23. Interest expenses

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:
•

030' •

Interest expenses on customers' deposits:
Time deposits
Saving accounts
Other deposits

Interest expense on balances due to banks
Time deposits for banks
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•YR'OOO

5,873,653

7,388,753

2020
YR'OOO

25,787,788
3,256,595

39,088
29,083,471

4,381 ,047
33,464 518

YR'OOO

7,866,463

12,007,660

2019
YR'OOO

5,838,317
1 557 766
7 396,083

2019
YR'000

27,026,972
2,997,638
112,882

30,137,492

3 638 781
33 776,273
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24. Fee and commission income from banking services

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Commissions on received transfers

Commissions on Visa card
Commissions on letters of guarantee
Commissions on letters of credit

Fee and commissions for other banking services

25. Gains from foreign currency transactions

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31 :

Gain from foreign currencies transactions
Loss from translation of foreign currencies

26. Other incomes

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Provisions reversed durinq the vear
Provision on loans and advances (performing and non-
performing)
Provision for doubtful debts balances and other assets
Other provisions

Income from owned properties rental
Other incomes

Notes

11,1
18

27. Impairment loss on financial assets (Provisions)

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Provision on loans and advances (performing and non-
performing)
Impairment provision on balances with banks
Provision for doubtful debts balances and other assets
Other provisions
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Notes

11,1
18

2020
YR'OOO

393,126
116,051
99,547

850,165
2,839,159

2020
YR'OOO

22,744,460
(3,434)

22,741 ,026

2020
YR'000

225,322
2,000,000
2,225,322

50,527
752 780

3 028 629

2020
YR'OOO

7,674,138

30,151 ,995

49,752 980

2019
YR'OOO

1,017,114
309,937
101 ,517
50,378

632,690
2,111,636

2019
YR'OOO

5,529,389
(1 ,031)

5,528,358

2019
Q YR'OOO

746,538

76,171
822,709

48,763
143,986

1 015 458

2019
9 YR'OOO

6,679,437

18,141,163
26 301 ,442
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Staff costs28.

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Salaries, allowances and incentives
Social security subscriptions

Medical expenses

29. Other expenses

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Zakat
Board of Directors allowances
Fuels, oils and maintenance
Insurance
Donations and charities
Service contracts expenses
Rents
Communications expenses
Electricity and water
Legal and professional fees
Transportation
Stationery and office supplies
Marketing expenses
Advertising and publishing
Costs of financing the right to use leased assets
Training
Subscription

Miscellaneous other expenses

30. Earnings per share

This item consists of the following for the year ended December 31:

Profit per share attributable to Bank's equity holders (YR'OOO)
Weiqhted average number of shares (Thousand shares)
Earnings per share (YR)

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

2020
YR'OOO

2,617,147
393,450
71,190

3,081 787

2020
YR'OOO

4,723,860

929,509
865,635
799,818
611 ,267
446,147
227,349
176,958
176,952
110,568
108,150
93,493
86,156
38,365
35,773
14,871

659.353
11,286 723

2020

16,913,717
165,000
102.51

2019
YRjooo

110,810
87 289

1,993,570

2019
YR'OOO

2,827,686

699,398
805,021

567 ,055
273,297
232,905
126,179
110,639
100,604
137,738
121,119
173,421
44,837
44,636
1 ,560

560,023
9,501 668

2019

15,701 ,995
165,000

95.16
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31. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if the party has the ability to control or exercise significant Influence over the

Group's operating and financial decisions. The Group deals with related parties on the same basis applied to third
parties in accordance with the Banks Law as implemented by CBY circular No. 4 of 1999, which limits credit
transactions with related parties and requires that the Group applies the same terms and conditions that are
applied with non-related parties.

The nature of the Group's activities requires dealing with certain shareholders, members of the Board ofDirectors
and companies owned by them. These transactions consist of obtalnlng loans and advances, issuing letters of
credit and letters ofguarantee and other various transactions conducted as part of the Group's normal activities.

This item consists of the transactions with related parties shown in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Deposits
Balance at January I

Added during the year
Deducted during the year
Exchange rate differences

Balance as at December 31

Loans and advances
Balance at January 1

Added during the year
Deducted during the year
Exchange rate differences

Balance as at December 31

Interests
Interests and commissions collected
Paid interests
Balance as at December 31

Remuneration for people in top manaqement
Salaries, bonuses and session allowances of directorsand
key manaqers during the year
Balance as at December 31

32. Fair value information

2020
YR'OOO

25,411 ,612

960,330

759,397
(91 ,317)
668,080

2019
YR'OOO

3,035,231

(1 , 136,495)

28,757,327

(3,345,715)

25,411 612

(353,237)_
916 030

2 019 425
1 590,281 2,019 425

Based on the evaluation method described below, the Group considers the fair value of all financial instruments
shown in the statement of financial position and off-balance sheet items as of December 31, 2020 are not
materially different from their carrying values at the consolidated statement of financial position date.

32.1 Estimatino the fair alues

32.1.1 Customers' Loans and advances

The fair value is calculated based on the expected future cash flows discounted for the asset and interests. It was
assumed that loan repayments took place in the due dates as per agreement when applicable. For loans that have
no specific repayment dates or those that are subject to collection risks, repayment is estimated based on previous
periods experience when interest rates were at levels similar to current interest rates levels, adjusted for any
changes in the expected interest rate. Estimation of future cash flows is developed taking into consideration the
associated credit risk and any indications of impairment. An estimate of future cash flows for any similarly
classified loans on a portfolio basis and are discounted at current rates for similar loans available to new borrowers
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with similar credit profiles. The estimated fair values reflect the changes in the credit position from the date of
granting the loans, they also reflect changes in interest rates in case of fixed interest rates loans.

32.1.2 Investments

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the consolidated statement of financial position date. In the absence
of a quoted market price, fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques and any othermethods of
evaluation. When the discounted cash flow techniques are applied it shall be based on managemends best
estimates of these future cash flows and the discount rate is the rate prevailing in themarket for a similar financial
instrument at the consolidated statement of financial position date.

32.1.3 Current accounts balance due to/ from banks

The book value of current accounts balances due to and due from banks, is an appropriate estimate of fair value
due to their short-term nature.

32.1.4 Deposits at banks and customers' deposits

For demand deposits and deposits with unknown maturities, fair value is considered to be the amount payable

on demand at the consolidated statement of financial position date. The estimated fair value of deposits with
fixed maturity periods is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates currently offered for deposits of
similar remainmg maturities. 1%en estimating fair value, long-term relationships with depositors are not taken

Into account.

3 D. Other financial instruments in the consolidated statement of financial position

The fair values of all other financial instruments in the consolidated statement of financial position approximate
to their carrying values.

32.3 Financial instrurnents outside the consolidated statenu•nt or financial position

No adjustments are made to the fair value of financial instruments outside the consolidated statement of financial
position that are related credit, which includes contingencies to provide credit facilities, letters of credit and letters
of guarantees, because future revenues associated with them reflect fundamentally contractual fees and
commissions related to agreements with similar credits and maturities at the consolidated financial position date.

32.4 Fair value compared to book value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities approximates to their book values as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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The following tables provide analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value, grouped into Levels I to 3 based on the observability of the fair value measurement inputs and the

degree of their importance to the fair value measurementprocess as a whole.

Lever 3
YR'OOO

Level S
&R'OOO

YR'OOO

540,847 ,447

120,000
14,059,375

58,377,127

Total
YR'OOO

504,711 ,273

120,000
19,245,194

58,419,286
496,095,603

33.

2020

Assets
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Available for sale financing

investments
Customers Loans and advances

Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers deposits

2019

Assets
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Available for sale financing

investments
Customers Loans and advances

Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers deposits

Riskmanagement

Carrying
Value

YR'OOO

540,847 ,447

120,000
14,059,375

58,377,127
452,707,740

Carrying
Value

YR'OOO

126,216,603
504,711 ,273

120,000
19,245,194

58,419,286
496,095,603

YR'OOO

Levertl
YR'OOO

Leve! 2

YR'OOO

540,847 ,447

120,000
14,059,375

58,377,127

Level 2

YR'OOO

504,711 ,273

120,000
19,245,194

58,419,286
496,095,603

The Group manages risks by various means through a comprehensive strategy in place determtning the risks and
ways to address and mitigate such risks. The risk management devices in the Group include the Board of
Directors, the CEO, the assets and liabilities committee, finance manager, treasury manager and the manager of
risk management, all whom are under constant supervision by themanagement of the bank.

The following is a summary of how the bank is managing risks:

33.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instmment will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss, credit risk arises in the normal course of business of the Group.

In this context, the Group strengthens institutional frameworks governing themanagementof credit through the
modernization and development of policies and procedures on an on-going basis.
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The bank also applies the instructions of theCentral Bank ofYemen circular No. (10) of 1997 on credit risk. The
management is committed with a nunimum set of standards for credit risk management. Procedures Ofmanagmg
and mitigating credit risk include the follovÅng:

Preparing credit studies on customers before dealing with them and determlntng credit risk rates related

to them.

Obtaining sufficient collateral to mimmize the credit risk exposure that may arise in case of customers'
default.
Conduct field visits and prepare periodic studies to customers in order to evaluate their financial and
credit positions.

Create the required provisions for non-performing loans.
Distributing Loans and advances portfolio to various sectors in order to avoid concentration of credit
risk.

Distribution is disclosed for financial assets and liabilities and contlngent liabilities and commitments in the
consolidated statement of financial position date, according to the business sector as follows:

33.1.1 Concentration bv customers

Assets
bue from Customers Loans

Liabilities

December 31
Individuals
Corporates
Banks

December 31
Individuals
Corporates
Banks

2020

2019

Banks
YR'OOO

96,083,277

126,216,603

sand Advances
YR'00d

1,827,719
12,231 ,656

2,501 ,875
16,743,319

19,245,194

Dup to Banks
YRiOOC

58,377,127
58 377,127

58,419,286
58,419,286

33.1.2 Concentration bv business sector

Industrial &CommerciaI
Services
Financial
Others

Assets
YR'OOO

12,231 ,656

2,512,356
695 324 962

2020

Liabilities
YR'OOO

321
67,906,161
58,377,127
188 496,262
636 202 045

conting
Liabilitiesand
Commitments

YR'OOO

21,556,512
4,029,631

25 586 143

Assets
YR'000

16,743,319

679,657,975
3E094 119

699 495 413

*019

Liabilities
YR'OOO

352,227,878

58,419,286
164,947,194
650 008 698
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Customers
Deposits
-YR'OOO

63,379,084
389,328,656

69,453,385
426,642,218

496,095,603

Contingent
Liabilities and
Commitments.

YR'OOO

10,591 ,697

1,415,963

12 007 660
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33.1.3 Concentration by geographical locations

Assets
Cash in hand and reserve balances with
the Central Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity Investments
Customers loans and advances
Available for sale financial investments

Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers' deposits
Contin ent liabilities and commitments net

Assets
Cash in hand and reserve balances with
the Central Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity Investments
Customers loans and advances
Available for sale financial investments

Liabilitie
Due to banks
Customers' deposits
Contingent liabilities and cMnmitments, net

30,746,648

14,059,375
120,000

58,377,127
452,707,740
14 453 019

Republicoi
Yemen
•YR'OOO

48,610,099
40,389,313

504, 711,273
19,245, 194

120,000

58,419,286
496,095,603
7,927,122

Arildric

America'
YR'OOO

Asim
YR'OOO

25,942,485

4 734 721

Africa total'

39,394,144

6 398,403

2019,

Europe
YR'OOO

ÄSiå
YR'OOO

YR'OW

Africa.

YR'OOO

51

33.1.4 Credit risk without taking into consideration the collaterals

Items of the consolidated statement of financial position
Due from banks
Customers Loans and advances
Debit balances and other assets
Available for sale financing investments
Items of the consolidated statement of financial position

Items off the consolidated statement of financial position

33.2 Liq risk

34,078,483

1,657,870

2020
9R'OOO

96,083,277

684,637
120,000

25,586,143

Yk'000

43,530,226

, ,447
14,059,375

120,000

58,377,127

25 586 143

Total
Yk'OOO

48,610,099
126,216,603

19,245,194
120,000

58,419,286

12,007,660

2019
YR'OOO

126,216,603
19,245,194

592,244
120 ooo

12,007,660

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial liabilities as they fall due. Liquidity
risk results from group'sinability to obtain cash to face the decrease in deposits or Increase In assets. The Group
monitors its liquidity risks through assets and liabilities maturity report, which is prepared internally. The Group
then classifies all assets and liabilities to periods up to one year and more. Investment department of the bank
controls and monitors liquidity risks and ensure that the Group does not face such risks and the best utilize the
group'sresources at the same time.

The Central Bank ofYemen set the liquidity ratio be 25% as a minimum according to the circular No. (3) of 1997.

The liquidity ratio at December 31,2020 was 114.36 % (at December 31,2019 was 112.87 %).
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The maturity profile of the bank's financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2019 was as follows:

Duevwithirvv Due within 6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31 , 2020

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the bank's financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2020

as follows:

74814$40

Assets
Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central

Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Available for sale financing investments
Customers loans and advances

Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers' deposits

iDuewithin;
3 Months
YR'OOO

43,530,226
96,083,277

540,847,447

9 841 ,562

690 302 512

58,377,127

352,637 158

Due Yithim

6 Months
YR'OOO

702 969
702 969

90 541 548
90,541,548

Puewithin6
Months to
One year:
YR'OOO

1 546 531
1 546 531

67,906 161

67,906,161

Due Ove/
•one Year

•YR'OOO

120,000
1,968,313
2 088 313

total
YR'OOO

43,530,226
96,083,277

120,000
14,059 375
694 640 325

58,377,127
452 707 740
511 084,867

Assets
Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central

Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Available for sale financing investments
Customers loans and advances

Liabilities

Due to banks
Customers' deposits

'Oue within
3Morth'
YR'OOO

48,610,099
126,216,603
504,711,273

13,471,636
693 009,611

58,419,286
322 462,142
380 881 428

Months to Dueover
. 6 Months

YR'OOO

962,260
962 260

99 219,121

One year
YR'OOO

2,116,971
2 116 971

One Year
YR'OOO

120,000
2,694,327
2 814 327

99 219 121 74 414 340

total
YR'OOO

48,610,099

504,711,273
120,000

19,245 194
698 903 169

58,419,286
496 095,603
554 514 889

33.3

33.3.1

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of fluctuation in the prices of financial instruments due to the change in foreign
exchange rates, and it arises from financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies. The operating currency
approved by the group is the Yemeni Rial, and given the group's dealings in a number of foreign currencies
according to the nature of its activity, this matter may expose it the risk of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
For the purposes of reducing that risk to a minimum, the group is working to take into account the balance in
the foreign currencies positions in accordance with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Yemen in

Circular No. (6) of 1998. So that the surplus in the position of each currency separately does not exceed 15% of
the capital base according to the circular No. (4975) issued by the Central Bank of Yemen on December 4, 2019,
in addition to the fact that the surplus in the combined position of all currencies should not exceed 250 0 of the
capital base referred to according to the circular.

In order to comply with the instructions of the Central Bank ofYemen in Circular No. (6) of 1998 and Circular
No. (4975), the Group periodically monitors foreign currency positions and disposes of surplus foreign currencies
at the exchange rates prevailing on that date.
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The following table shows the net exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates at the date of the financial
statements:

Assets
Liabilities
Net forei

Assets
Liabilities

2020
Sterling
PoundSAR

n currencies ositions

USOoilars
•YR'OOO

204,996 791
66 702 185

US Dollars
YR'OOO

164,736,201

YR'OOÖ

13,503,326
13 818,920

Eur@
YR'OOO

10,901 ,072
11 132 190

(231,118)

Yk'000

1,264,824
2,756,838
1 492 014

2019

SAR
YR'OOO

1,118,383
2 944,000
(1,825,617)

Yk'000

226,934
226,959

25

Sterling
Pound
YR'OOO

296,545
295,427
1,118

OtÅr
,currencies

YR'OOO

2,564,209
1 801,016
763 193

Other
currencies

YR'OOO

67 746 625

TotaÉ

Net foreign currencies positions

YR'OOOv' YR'000

3,978,938 231 576,828
3,465,946

The following table also shows the significant foreign currency positions at the date of the consolidated financial

statements:

US Dollars
Sterling Pound
Euro
Saudi Rial
Emirati Dirham
Other currencies

.2020 02019

(Deficit)
YR'OOO

(66,702,185)
(25)

(315,594)

763,329
(136)

Surplus/ % ofCapital &% of Capital &
Reserves(Deficit),Reserves

(107.30)

(0.51)
(2.40)
1.23

(108.98)

YR'OOO

(48,490,072)
1,118

(231,118)
(1 ,825,617)
3,464,614

1 332

(92.18)

(0.44)
(3.47)
6.59

(89.5)

The bank exceeded the specified ceilings according to the instructions of the Central Bank ofYemen issued in

Circular No. (6) of 1998, which stipulates that bank apply a higher ceiling for each currency position separately,
in addition to a ceiling for the Combined foreign currencies position, so that the surplus in the position of each

currency separately does not exceed 15% of the capital base according to Circular No. (4975) and the combined
position of foreign currencies does not exceed 250/0 of the capital base according to the circular. The bank's
management during the subsequent period is working to gradually correct the situation.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The exchange rates for the major currencies as at 31 December are as follows:

Closing rate According to

YBYAnnouncement202& '2019

Average Rate
in the Parallel Market*

US Dollars
Euro
Saudi Rial

Sterling Pound

UAE Dirham

250.25
307.71
66.72

340.99
68.13

YR

250.25
280.43
66.71

328.21

68.13

2020

589
734.5
155.5

809.5
160.58

2019

580
649.8
153.5

760.89
154

The latest transactions were used by the Group's management to determine the average exchange rates in

the parallelmarket.
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The following table shows the sensitivity analysis related to the effect of changes in the foreign currency against
the Yemeni Rial, taking into account exchange rates in the parallel market, and assuming that the other variables

are stable, on the statement of comprehensive income (as a result of the fair value of financial assets and liabilities
subject to currency risk).

Impact on net Income
Increase/ Decreasé),

019
Y '000

US Dollars
Euro
Saudi Rial

Sterling Pound
UAE Dirham
Other

(90,291 , 170)
(437,982)

(34)

(176)
(91,680,497)

(63,894,510)
(304,418)

1 ,474
4,366, 746

1 ,678

In accordance with the instructions issued by theCentral Bank ofYemen to all the banks operating in the Republic

of Yemen, which states that sensitivity analysis for the effect of foreign currencies fluctuation on the financial
statements should be performed and presented, based on the exchange rate of the parallelmarket and stating the

effect of the change in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and banks holding short financial
positions for foreign currencies should create a provision for losses related to the exposure of the difference
between the value of the short positions of the foreign currencies according to the closing rates of CBY
instructions and the average market exchange rate.

33.3.2 Interest rates risk

The Bank's operations are exposed to the risk ofinterest rate to the extent that interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities mature at different times or in different amounts. Risk management activities are aimed to

optimize net Interest income provided that market interest rate levels are consistent with Group's bustness
strategies. The Group manages mitigate the differences by following policies and guidelines to reduce risks by
matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities. Details are presented concerning the differences ofre-pricing and
interest rate risk to the assets and liabilities committee during its regular meetings, as well as to the risk committee
of the bank's management.

Bank's management follows steps to reduce or limit the effects of the risks arising from interest rates to the

minimum level as follows:

Link the interest rate on borrowing with interest rates on lending.
Consider different currency discount rates when setting interest rates.
Monitor compatibility of financial assets and liabilities maturity dates.

Average interest rates applied during ghe year

The average interest rates on assets and liabilities during the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follow:

Assets
Time deposits with banks
Held to maturity investments
Overdraft facilities
Customers Loans

Liabilities
Time deposits —customers
Saving accounts
Time deposits — banks

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

16.9
22
22

15
15

16.42

US Dollar

2

13
10

1.5

1.5
5

EURO SAR

0.10
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The average interest rates on assets and liabilities during the year ended December 31, 2019 follows:

Assets
Time deposits with banks
Held to maturity investments
Overdraft facilities
Customers Loans

Liabilities
Time deposits—customers
Saving accounts
Time deposits — banks

16.98
22
22

15
15

16.42

US Dollar,

2

13
10

1.5
1.5

5

EURO 'SAR

0.10

34. Financial reports for business sectors

The Bank operates in the following three sectors:

Retail banking services - including banking services for individuals, current accounts and savings
accounts, deposits, investment savings products, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and housing
loans.
Banking services for corporates - including direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, loans,

overdrafts and other credit facilities.
Treasury and Investments - Other acuvtties are represented tn Investment management and corporate
finance, which do not represent an independent sector that must be reported.

Transactions between the business sectors are done In accordance with normal commercial terms. Funds are
allocated normally between sectors resulting in the disclosure of the cost offunding transfers within the operating
income. Interest charged on these funds is based on the cost of the Bank's capital. There are no other material
items of Income or expense between the business sectors.

Assets and liabilities of the sector are represented by operating assets and liabilities which is the majority of the
consolidated statement of financial position, however, it does not include such items as taxes and borrowings.

35. Contingent liabilities

Certain legal cases have been filed against the Bank for the amount of approximately YR 134 million as of
December 31, 2020 (2019: YR 82 million) and a provision for contingent liabilities was created to address some
of these issues during the year 2020 with an amount ofYR 122 million (2019: YR 25 million). According to legal
department's opinion, the Group's managementbelieves that the resulting judgments in those cases for which no
provision for contingent liabilities has been created will not affect the group'soperations.

36. Tax position

The Bank submits it's tax retums annually and pay the tax due accordingly.

The Bank was notified during the year 2015, for additional tax and delay penalty for the year 2010,
according to form (3), with an amount ofYR 2,428,179 thousand and the bank has objected such amount
within the legal time frame in Tax Court. The appeal decision was issued in favor of the bank and the
appeal decision was subsequently challenged by the Tax Authority to the preliminary court, which in turn
issued a ruling in favor of the bank. The court's decision was challenged by the Tax Authority to the

Court ofAppeal. The banks management believes that it would not result in any additional liabilities.
Tax settlement has been done for both income tax and payroll tax until the end of 2016, and amounts
were paid according to the final tax forms received from Tax Authority.
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37.

38.

The Bank has subrnitted the tax declaration for the year 2017. The Bank was notified with final additional
assessment amounted to YR 538,895 thousand, part of which was paid in the amount ofYR 349,529
thousand and the remalntng amount has been charged on provision of foreign exchange position
exposure losses as a result of exchange rate fluctuations and the additional assessment of the Skills
Development Fund to theAppeals Committee. The Bank's management believes that it would not result
In any additional liabilities because of the unlawfulness of assessment.
The Bank has submitted the tax declaration for the year 2018. The Bank was notified with final additional
assessment amounted to YR 785,608 thousand, part of which was paid in the amount of YR 512,426
thousand and the remattung amount has been charged on provision of foretgn exchange position
exposure losses as a result of exchange rate fluctuations and the additional assessment of the Skills
Development Fund to the Appeals Committee. The Bank's management believes that it would not result
in any additional liabilities because of the unlawfulness of assessment.
The Bank has submitted its tax return and paid the amount of the declaration for the year 2019 based on
the financial statements for the year 2019 and inspection for the year is currently ongoing by the Tax
Authority. The Bank has not received any additional notification up to the date of issuing these

consolidated financial statements.
The Bank has submitted its tax return and paid the amount of the declaration for the year 2020 based on
the draft financial statement for the year 2020, until the consolidated financial statements are approved
by the Central Bank of Yemen. Tax Authority has no conduct any inspection and the Bank has not
received any additional notification up to the date of issuing these consolidated financial statements.

Zakat position

The Bank reached to a final settlement with the General Zakat Authority, in respect of the years 2017
and 2018, whereby the amounts and differences calculated by the Authority were paid.
The Bank paid the amount of its zakat declaration for the year 2019 according to its financial statements.
The Bank paid the amount of its zakat declaration for the year 2020 according to its financial statements.

Current events in the Republic of Yemen

As a result ofthe political crisis, the economic situation, and the current security events In the Republic ofYemen,
it constitutes a challenge to the management to predict the effects of these conditions on the group'sactivity,
patterns of future flows, their results, and its consolidated financial position for the comlng period, and the
management is still continuing to study the effects of this crisis in the near term on the Group and make the
necessary reserves in order to ensure continuity.

39. Effects of the coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic

The event of the outbreak of the new Coronavirus (Covid-19) occurred at the beglnnlng of the year 2020, and its
spread in several geographical regions around the world, causing disruptions to economlc and business activities.

The Group has assessed the effects of the epidemic on its current, future operational activities and has taken a
series ofpreventive and precautionary procedures, including activating remote work in order to ensure the safety
of employees and their families, and fully activating technical solutions to ensure the continued implementation
of projects and businesses, until the date of preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31,

2020, Group's business and operational activities were not fundamentally affected by the consequences of the

continuing outbreak of the virus.

The management will continue to monitor the situation and provide the stakeholder with developments as

required by the laws and regulations in case of any fundamental changes in the current conditions or any
amendments to the financial statements of the Group for the subsequent periods.
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Subsequent events40.

As a result of the exposure of the economic situation in Lebanon and its local banking system has been subjected
to a large degree Of uncertainty and the current lack of clarity about the potential negative effects on the Lebanese

economy and the banking sector, which led to the inability of Bank of Beirut-Lebanon's to pay International
Bank of Yemen dues represented in deposits and current accounts, as at December 31, 2020, with an amount of
USD 170,519 thousand, SAR 2, 145 thousand, EUR 8,838 thousand equivalent to YR 45,535,046 thousand. The
Group's management signed settlement agreement with Bank of Beirut on March 18, 2021 in which an amount
of USD 11,000 was collected during the year 2021 and 427,125 thousand bond was purchased (Eurobonds) via

the Government of Lebanon for US 170,850 thousand at US 40 cent per bond, equivalent to YR 42,755,212
thousand. The balance remains under collection with Bank of Beirut-Lebanon is USD 236 thousand equivalent
to YR 58,966 thousand.

41. Approval of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statementswere approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issuing on
May 24, 2022.
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42.

42.1

The separate financial statements for 1BY bank - parent company

Staternent of financial position

Assets
Cash on hand and reserve balances with Central Bank of Yemen
Due from banks
Held to maturity investments
Customers loans and advances
Available for sale financing investments
Investment in subsidiary
Debit balances and other assets
Property and equipment
Right to use leased assets
Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks
Customers' deposits
Credit balances and other liabilities
Other provisions
Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Statutory reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingent liabilities and commitments

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

31, 2020,
e YR'OOO

43,530,226
96,083,277

540,847,447
14,059,375

120,000

684,637
2,144,995
567,353

698,037,310

58,377,127
452,707,740
21,372,089

635 940 870

17,885,179
27,711961

698,037,310

25,586,143

Dec. 31, 2019
YR'OOO

504,711 ,273
19,245,194

120,000

592,244
2,317,657
682,878

702,495,948

58,419,286

19,552,054
75,681 ,448
649 748 391

20,899 436
52,747,557

702,495,948
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42.2 Statement of comprehensae irconn• for •he yx•ars ended

Interest income
Interest income from held to maturity investments
Total interest income

Interest expenses
Net interest income

Fee and commission income from banking services
Fee and commission expenses from banking services
Gains from foreign exchange transactions
Income from available for sale financing investments
Other incomes
Net operating income

Less: Impairment loss on financial assets (provision)
Less: Impairment of financial investments available for sale
Less: Depreciation of property, equipment and right to use leased assets
Less: Staff costs

experises
Profit for the year before tax

Income tax_forthe_year
Net profit for the year after tax

Other_gomprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (Yemeni Riyal)

International Bank of Yemen (Y.S.C.)

Deceniher .31

2020
NR'OOO

7,388,753
87,539,534
94,928,287

(33,464,518)
61

2,839,159
(310,671)

22,741,026

3,028,629
89,761,912

(49,752,980)
(198)

(904,182)
(3,081,787)
(11,285.066)
24,737,699

7,822,657)

16,915,042

102.52

2019
YR'OOO

7,396,083
78,406,330
85,802,413

52,026,140

2,111 ,636
(350,761)
5,528,358

12,000

60,342,831

(26,301 ,442)

(331 , 175)

9.499.986)_
22,216,658

15,703,341

15,703,341

95.17
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